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INTRODUCTORY SECTION
This section includes miscellaneous data regarding the Village of Elwood, Tllinois including:
¢ List of Principal Officials
. Organization Chart

¢ Letter of Transmittal
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Vlllage of Elwood
Establzshed 1 889 :

Pnnaiqfourpastlhukhngourfuﬁur S R e
PO BOX435 Elwood IL 60421 C. (815) 423 5011 e Fax (815) 423-’6‘86"1‘ 2 ‘

T;Jané-zz,‘zodsd

‘*LTo the Cltlzens of the Vlllage of Elwood‘

‘We submlt to you the Comprehen51ve Annual Flnanc1al Report of the

"ih,Vlllage of Elwood- for ‘the. fiscal year ended Aprll 30, 2005. The" e
‘”respon31b111ty for the accuracy of ‘the data and the completeness and’
v fairness. of the presentatlon,'lncludlng dlsclosures, rests with the

l‘Vlllage of Elwood Admlnlstratlve Department +oTo the best of ‘our

yi;knowledge and bellef ‘the enclosed. data ‘is accurate in all materlal'ﬂf'
respects and. gives an accurate representatlon of the flnan01al \

~Afpos1tlon and results of operatlons of" the- various funds and account
. groups of the Vlllage All dlsclosures necessary to enable ‘the
‘reader to understand funds ‘and account - ‘groups. of . the Village are

Ad,flncluded All dlsclosures necessary to enable the ‘reader to galn g
- the max1mum understandlng of’ the Vlllage s flnan01al act1v1t1es haveify"

'ffbeen 1ncluded

:tThe Comprehen31ve Annual Flnanc1al Report is presented in three

”nsectlons ‘Introductory,vFinan01al and ‘Statistical.  The. Introductory jri

,‘tsectlon “includes this transmittal letter,ythe Vlllage s',‘_‘
,Q,;organlzatlonal chart and’ a llSt of pr1n01pal off1c1als The -
foFinan01al sectlon 1ncludes SERRRY : S

The 1ndependent audltor s report on the flnanc1al statements‘u‘ﬂ‘”

_ﬂ; ‘and ‘schedules = SRR
»;egGeneral purpose flnanc1al statements“y‘
. =./Notes to the financial statements,.7\

. —:Combining statements e

i —lInd1v1dual fund statements

= Account group. financial statements o
”gf{Supplemental 1nformatlon -

: The Statlstlcal sectlon 1ncludes selected flnanc1al and demographlc-"'
1nformatlon, generally presented on a multl year bas1s.,,' S

ot RobertBlum iv‘vf:'; ,‘ S Patrzcz]a%grchenan S SO ~qu;e'%t"Ni55‘én;
&y Vzllage Preszdent Sl Vzllage Clerk T :VillagenAdﬁfiinis:t‘mtor,







The Vlllage prov1des a full range of serv1ces j TheseyserVices“‘j}Cjﬁ/

: <1nclude

R Admlnlstratlon
,ffLegal RN Co
v ‘—fCommunlty development»
. =.Police protection - - e = SRR
= Construction .and malntenance of roads, streets and.
-infrastructure . .. 3 L e
- Water dlstrlbutlon';”"~;'
‘“l;‘4gWastewater treatment e

_5~ECON0MIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK : . ' : ' B

. The’ Vlllage is located in ‘the. western portlon of Wlll County, Wthh
Q_ﬂfls ranked 'asone of the top . growth areas in the nation:. It> 1sv_fp,«
w_f‘located approx1mately thirty-five miles southwest of Chlcago.

. .;Housing constructlon Ain. the past (5), flve year ‘has 'seen some . e
,l‘p031t1ve changes in’ the Vlllage s economlc future. ' In addltlon, the o
. .largest industrial park in the. natlon is. located w1th1n a ‘tax ool
7p§y1ncrement flnanc1ng (TIF) dlStrlCt w1th1n the Vlllage s western

'f\boarder Ee :

,‘=The estlmated actual value of property ‘in the Vlllage has 1ncreased
by T, 96%~1n 2005 Current prOJectlons agaln ant1c1pate a. ‘growth RS N
f:rate in-2006 of approxrmately 14.00% based on’ prellmlnary assessment3:<h”,‘fﬁ
,”ilnformatlon When comparing this’ growth rate to the. prlor ten onie o
,Viﬁyears,gwhlch averaged 4.34% per- year from 1995 through 2005, 1t ,
‘iy5appears that the majority. of the. property in: the Village is Stlll to,.f
'Z;be developed future development w1ll occur on a sporadlc ba31s :

‘w[In FYE 2005 utlllty tax revenue 1ncreased by $ 37 791 or 17 75°
" This’ compares ‘to. a $63, 149 increase or 19.00%" durlng ‘the- prev1ous =
o fiscal year . Utlllty tax. prov1ded approx1mately 17.4% 6f the total f; ey
"Lf,General Fund operatlng revenue in. FYE 2005 as: compared w1th 18 50\inﬁg;hfp;y'
- FYE 2004 ) R S S § ST TR o

'v:_OTHER ECONQMIC CONDITIONS EXPECTED N : 3

”;ﬁHou31ng developments will' dncrease con31stent w1th the growth in: the L
- rest of western Will County : Major developments are planned for

'ﬂ”upscale developments R : , v , . Ly

: :”Currently, employment in Wlll County remalns relatlvely equal to the'ﬁ'ﬁ
. state- and national level, with a 6. 2% unemployment rate in the. ;

o “_~county as’ of May- 22005, This. compares to . a statewide rate of 5. 6°
tevand fa, natlonal average of -5.9%. - .The local unemployment rate has'

: y}decreased from the: rate reported last year - The: ‘Bureau of Labor

L StatlSthS supplles thlS 1nformatlon to the Vlllage ‘ ' '

. ”MAJOR INITIATIVES ; g L : _

. “The Vlllage has accompllshed many major 1n1t1at1ves durlng FYE 2005 e
::v{“Some of the accompllshments that the elected officials" and. Staff are
“fgmost proud of ‘are descrlbed in- the followrng Plannlng of the ‘new 2

dvo




“7fvlllage Hall major constructlon progects -om. major Vlllage
qthoroughfares,;new water treatment plant and water plant

;ﬁrDEPARTMENT FOCUS TR L e

vaer the past flscal year: the Vlllage has expanded the v
'admlnlstratlve operatlon to\accommodate the growth 1n ‘the. communlty
“The’ Vlllage added the flrstfPubllc Works Superv1sor, part time . oo
clerk; -and contract Flnance\Adv1sor In addltlon, the computer

,gW1th a new telephone systemfand expanded offlce area

'»?lFINANCIAL INFORMATION S R T o
JManagement of the Vlllage is respons1ble for establlshlng and

faccountlng data are complled to allow for the: preparatlon of
;flnanc1al statements 1n conformlty w1th generally accepted
7account1ng prlnclples ‘ , GONE _ : il

1'he Vlllage s accountlng records forngovernmental and agency funds

;recorded when they become ‘measurable and avallable and expendlture :
are recorded when 'the fund llabllltyhls lncurred Accountlng
‘records’” for the Vlllage s enterprlsefare malntalned on'a: full”
.accrual ba81s T S i SR ' '

vahe 1nternal control structure 1s de31gned to provide reasonable,rff
’kbut not:- absolute, assurance that these objectlves_are met.. “The. . ..
ﬁconcept of reasonable. assurance recognlzes that"(l) ‘tHe" cost of a”

”fby management

- BUDGETING CONTROLS “Tn addltlon the Vlllage malntalns budgetary

‘controls.  The objectlve of the budgetary ‘controls is to ensure',%
:compllance with legal prov1srons ‘embodied in- the: annual budget Ve
“approved by the Vlllage Board- Act1v1t1es of the General Fund,

rFunds,vEnterprlse Funds and  Tax. Increment Flnanc1ng ‘Funds. are’

dna; separate document “The level of budgetary : control” (that" is,. o
fythe level at which- expendltures cannot legally exceed the budgeted
;famount) 1s establlshed at the 1nd1v1dual fund level o B

,wAs demonstrated by the statements and schedules 1ncluded 1n the
respon51blllty for sound flnan01al management

,]GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS The. follow1ng schedule presents a
7fsumm§ryl9f Qengral ‘Fund, . Specral Revenue Funds, Debt Serv1ce Funds

fsystem has been expanded to;prov1de for more of an -open- system alongkﬂgb‘“'

:malntalnlng an 1nternal control structure “This: structure 1sfgyﬂf?"f¥fy"wb
Qde31gned to. ensure that ‘the’ assets of ‘the Vlllage ‘are protected fromf*
loss,. theft or’ mlsuse It is also des1gned to ensure that adequate-”

fare malntalned ona modlfled accrualfba51s, which means revenues' arej'

dgcontrol should not exceed the benefits. llkely to be derived; and (fopf
“eothet valuatlon of costs and beneflts requlres estlmates and judgments“

Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, certain Capital PrOJects,fﬁyx :

’;1ncluded in the annual operatlonal budget Progect length flnanc1alfffr~f”di
j;plans ‘are prepared for the Capital Projects Funds and are publlshed i

,flnanc1al sectlon of: this. report the: Vlllage contlnues to meet 1tsfh9w't




:_and Capltal Progects Funds revenues “for the flscal year ended Aprll

30, 2005, for the prlmary government of the Vlllage, and the amount:

"Mand percentage of 1ncreases and decreases 1n relatlon to prlor year SR

_1m%¢g;,,f'revenues

- Increase" m S
R T PP R Sl e : (Decrease)" overf}, 2004
Revenues by Source“"/ 02005 0 2004 L. 2003 o Percent -

 Taxes. § 3,538,069 8 2,109,670  § 1,428,399 . 167.71%
‘Charges for ‘Services 2,737,438 . 63,483 2,673,955 4312, 08%
. Licenses & Permits - 172,993 250,798 - (77,805) 68.98% -
‘fIntergovernmental 536,644 2,039,146 (1,502,502) - 26.32% =
f‘Interest Income - . 125, 688p;*f' 1,192, 875;!';; (1,067, 187y§;ﬁ("1o.54g;,n,_w_
Mlscellaneous'“. e ’A145 246 22,046,609 . (21,901,363) . .0.66%

~Total ;,«‘*;y,l;,{\ $. 7 256, 078 827,702,581 8 (201446,503)7;'4586;28%“

iﬂr'Taxes 1ncreased by $l 428 399 due prlmarlly to the property taxes 1nj‘i_:ffﬂffi
‘ifthe TIF dlstrlct and in utlllty taxes ' : o

‘u;f TLlcenses and permlts decreased by $ 77 805 due to decreased o
St development in the TIF dlStrlCt and throughout the v1llage.w}.ng.

.'Intergovernmental Revenues decreased by $l 502 502 over FYE 2004
’”;Thls ‘was due to reclass1fy1ng state grants to another line 1tem._”f

fffInterest Income decreased by $1 067 187 due to substantlally reduced"fv‘“h
i':cash balances FRE , g . ; : S

1ffF1nally, Mlscellaneous Revenue decreased in FYE 2005 by $21 428 202 Qd“f'
jﬂdue prlmarlly to a- decrease 1n grant and loan proceeds ERIN

) Increase I
PR TSI Sh B T " (Decrease) over»_”“‘ZOOAlf'
Expenses RN 2005 Coa 2004 0 2004 .- Percent

:'“f,vGeneral Government 927,477 71,356,413 (428 936)'1‘ :68.38% -
. Public Safety . .. 689,769 427,242 262,527 161.45%
nﬂ\nghway & Streets . 498,830 . . 670,158 ,1;*‘ (171,328) - 74.43%
- Debt Serv1ce’.;;,’fu 2,285,264 .0 2,285,264 0.00%
. Capital Outlay oo 7,481,335 0 18,273,581 (10,792,246) - 0 40.94%

"~2 Total © - - 7$11,882,675  § 20,727,394 . S (8,644,719)  57.33%5 .

fvahere was ‘an $11 127 381 or 46 32/ decrease in expendltures for .
{fGeneral Government Publlc Safetyy and'. nghways & Streets in FYE
ﬂ‘2005 Thls was due prlmarlly to a reductlon Ain. capltal progects

.srfExpendltures for Capltal Outlay decreased in FYE 2005 by $1O 792 246
: ;or 4.0 94°'& This decrease was entlrely due to. a decrease 1n L
‘Jconstructlon act1v1ty e L I L

vi



1:f:GENERAL FUND BALANCE The fund balance in the General Fund lncreased S
_in FYE 2005 by $268, 769 or 258.23%. ‘After each fiscal year the = =
f]31V1llage is relmbursed from the Phase l Fund for any def1c1ts, whlch

’ Tqaccounts for the large def1c1t : ; B

‘?{7ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS the Vlllage s enterprlse operatlons 1nclude
fi'the Waterworks. and. Sewerage ‘Fund and the Garbage Fund. For FYE -
f¥2005 operatlng 1ncome in the Enterprlse Funds 1ncreased by $188 702
‘or '44.00% ‘over the prlor year,(due to relmbursements from 1ndustr1al
"park developer. : : NS » : ~ -

Z*DEBT ADMINISTRATION The Vlllage does not - have any outstandlng

general obllgatlon debt and has a not been rated from the credlt e
ratlng agencies. Belng a-home- rule communlty the Vlllage does not "ja“”"m
nhave a: llmlt ‘on. bondlng authorlty RO o R T e

‘m_CASH MANAGEMENT Cash temporarlly 1dle durlng the year was 1nvested
“idn, 1nvestment pools The Village' s 1nvestment pollcy is to mlnlmlze"
“credit: and market rlsks whlle malntalnlng ‘a competltlve yleld on . 1ts
_portfollo Accordlngly, depOSltS are 1nsured by federal dep051tory
insurance. However, pollcy requires all 1nvestments to be : e
{collaterallzed The Vlllage s ‘investment. management is in- »'
?tran51tlon w1th a number ‘of. changes expected in coming: years and E
,f?comprehens1ve rev1ew of the Vlllage s 1nvestment pollcy ant1c1pated o

'fRISK MANAGEMENT The Vlllage entered 1nto a. contractual agreement
.;jfeffectlve January 1, 1986 - joining: the Illln01s Mun1c1pal League
Risk: Management Agency (IMLRlSk),thlCh prov1des ‘the Vlllage w1th
@ Adts.-insurance ‘coverage for llablllty, property damage,‘workmen s
Vcompensatlon,iand all: other llnes of " coverage ~IRMA is a self—'w SR
»-insurance “group.. conSIStlng of several munlclpalltles, poollng thelrf :
- risks through a.self-insurance agency: ' During. 2005, the: Vlllagef'~i*
f;dcontlnued low clalm experlence through 1nnovat1ve loss control

fINDEPENDENT AUDIT State statute requlres an- annual audlt by i M
'ylndependent certlfled publlc accountants. The Vlllage selected theﬁf)g;?TV"
ffaccountlng flrm of Lauterbach & Amen, LLP ‘The auditor's report on -

’l,the generalwpurpose flnanc1al statements and comblnlng and - -
“71nd1v1dual ‘fund. statements. and schedules is 1ncluded “ins the Ve R
Q“flnanc1al sectlon of thlS report 5 ';;;‘.‘, N I pwv;nh R RN R

fﬁAWARDS The Government Flnance Offlcers Assocratlon (GFOA) awards ajf, N
ngertlflcate of Achlevement for: Excellence in: Flnanc1al Reportlng toff}~“r"‘”
fgovernmental entltles for thelr Comprehens1ve Annual Flnanc1al -
. "Report- (CAFR) ‘for each flscal year -This is. the second year the
_'f3V1llage 1s applylng for ‘the prestigious . award SIn- order to be e
'fﬂ‘awarded a. Certlflcate of Achievement,: the Vlllage must publlsh an e
L easily. readable and eff1c1ently organlzed Comprehens1ve Annual> A Ly
fﬁ'Flnanc1al Report ThlS report must satlsfy both generally acceptedﬁ__gj




“tdfaocouhtihgfprihoiples;andgappiicablejlegai;reqoirementQJ':rffﬁ”

”,A Certlflcate of Achlevement is valld for a perlod of one year only.{‘

L We belleve ‘that ‘our current Comprehen51ve ‘Annual F1nanc1al Report SR
{meets the Certlflcate of ‘Achievement Program' S requ1rements and we -
Lare: submlttlng it to the GFOA to determlne 1ts ellglblllty for a- o

Twcertlflcate.'~

‘ffACKNOWLEDGEMENTS The preparatlon of the Comprehen31ve Annual

'xﬁtFlnanc1al Report on a tlmely basis was ‘made: possible by the

"fdedlcated serv1ce of . the entlre admlnlstratlve staff. ‘Each member

fthhas our . sincere apprec1atlon for the contrlbutlons made dn-

'Ll;preparatlon of thls report.w Partlcular recognltlon should be glven EE
. ootolPat - Buchenau, Vlllage Clerk for her hard work and dedlcatlon 1n Y;a“”"
‘=f?>complet1ng thls report REAA Y e 5 e

'In addltlon, the Vlllage w1shes to recognlze the staff of the flrm

;“H;of Lauterbach & Amen, whose profe351onallsm and cooperatlon is’
‘]T51ncerely apprec1ated L Inm c1051ng,.we would llke to: thank ‘the -
f‘7members of the Board of Trustees for their 1nterest ‘and support in. SRy DO

*Ufplannlng and conductlng the flnan01al operatlons of ‘the Vlllage in- a_;]};.j,‘

”1@5Accountant

'frespon51ble and progressive manner. Wlthout thelr leadershlp ‘and

~ongoing support, preparatlon of thls report would not’ have beenng;,ﬁffw

'j]p0531ble.,jq:g_,

. Sincerely,

”7Roberta Day
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FINANCIAL SECTION

This section includes:
¢ Independent Auditors’ Report
* Management’s Discussion and Analysis
e Basic Financial Statements
* Required Supplementary Information

¢ Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules






INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

This section includes the opinion of the Village’s independent auditing firm.
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27W457 WARRENVILLE ROAD * WARRENVILLE, ILLINOIS 60555-3902
(847) 562-9252

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

June 22, 2005

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Elwood, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Village of Elwood, Illinois as of and

for the year ended April 30, 2005, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These basic financial
statements are the responsibility of the Village of Elwood, Illinois' management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Village of Elwood, Illinois as of Apnil 30, 2005, and the results of its operations
and the cash flows of its business type activities for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
“principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Village has adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local
Governments, Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — For State and Local Governments: Omnibus, Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures and Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, and of May 1, 2004. This results in a change in
the Village’s method of accounting for certain non-exchange revenues and a change in the format and
content of the basic financial statements and notes to financial statements.






Village of Elwood, Illinois
June 22, 2005
Page 2

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The combining and individual fund schedules, as well as the information listed as supplemental and
schedules, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements of the Village of Elwood, Illinois. Such information, except for that portion marked
"unaudited” on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is presented fairly, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information listed in the
accompanying table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion thereon.

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

Stz dach o LLP

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP -
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Ménagément’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Elwood’s financial performance provides an
overview of the Village’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005. Please read
it in conjunction with the transmittal letter that begins on page iii and the Village’s financial
statements, which begin on page 16. This is the first year that the Village is applying GASB
Statement No. 34. Therefore, comparative data for the prior year is not available. In future years
a comparative analysis of government-wide data will be presented.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Village of Elwood’s net assets increased as a result of this year’s operations
capital improvements by $7,527,551. While net assets of business-type activities
increased by $565,221.

¢ During the year, expenses were $6.5 million more than the $7.3 million generated in _
revenues for governmental programs.

e Revenues for business-type activities were $1.5 million while expenses were also
$1.5 million, resulting in no change to net assets.

* The General Fund reported a surplus this year of $268,769, resulting in an ending
fund balance of $439,134. '

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities (on pages 17 - 18) provide information about the activities of the
Village of Elwood as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Village’s finances. Fund
financial statements begin on page 19. For governmental activities, these statements tell how
these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the Village of Elwood’s operation in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the Village’s most significant
funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the
Village acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Village
of Elwood’s finances, in a matter similar to a private-sector business. The government wide
financial statements can be found on pages 16 - 18 of this report.

The Statement of Net Assets reports information on all of the Village’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village is
improving or deteriorating. Consideration of other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the

- Village’s property tax base and the condition of the Village’s foad_s, is needed to assess the

overall health of the Village of Elwood.



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT - Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements — Continued

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Village include
general government, public safety, public works, and parks and recreation. The business-type
activities of the Village include water, sewer, and garbage operations.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village of Elwood, like other local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the Village’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund

- statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to

facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village of Elwood maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented

separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Deer Run TIF Fund,

CenterPoint Phase I Fund, and the Road Improvements Fund, all of which are considered major
. funds. ' S
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT - Continued
Fund Financial Statements - Continued
Governm’entalA Funds — Continued

Data from the other four g‘overnmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Village of Elwood adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of the governmental funds, -
except the Road Improvements Fund. A budgetary comparison statement for these funds has
been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The basic governmental fund
financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 23 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

The Village maintains one types of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The Village utilizes enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer, and
-garbage operations.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Water and Sewer Fund and the Garbage Fund. The Water and Sewer
Fund is considered to be a major proprietary fund of the Village, while the Garbage Fund is
considered to be a nonmajor fund. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found
on pages 25 - 27 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 28 - 50 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Village’s LM.R.F. employee pension
obligations. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 51 - 53 of this report.
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on the pension.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 54 - 79 of this
report



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The

following tables show that in the case of the Village of Elwood, assets exceeded liabilities by
$10.9 million increasing from the previous year.

Net Assets (in Millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Current and Other Assets $ 7.6 2.2 9.8
Capital Assets 120.3 21.4 141.7

Total Assets 127.9 , 23.6 151.5
Long-Term Debt Outstanding (121.2) (14.5) (135.7)
Other Liabilities 6.6 - 6.6

Total Liabilities (114.6) (14.5) (129.1)
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Debt (4.6) 232 18.6
Restricted 1.9 - 1.9
Unrestricted (Deficit) 2.8 (12.3) 9.5)

Total Net Assets 0.1 10.9 11.0

By far the largest portion of the Village of Elwood’s net assets reflects its investment in capital
assets of $18.6 million (for example, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village of Elwood uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Village of Elwood’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion or $1.9 million of the Village of Elwood’s net assets represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining net assets
represents unrestricted net assets and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - Continued

Changes in Net Assets (in millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Prbgram Revenues
Charges for Services $ 3.0 0.6 3.6
Capital Grants/Contributions 0.2 0.8 1.0
Operating Grants/Contributions 0.1 0.1 0.2
General Revenues
Property Taxes 33 - 33
Utility Taxes 0.2 - 0.2
Sales Taxes 0.2 - 0.2
Income Taxes 0.1 - 0.1
Other General Revenues 0.2 - 0.2
Total Revenues 7.3 L5 8.8
Expenses
General Government 0.9 - 0.9
Public Safety 0.7 - 0.7
Public Works 0.4 - 0.4
Parks and Recreation 0.1 - - 01
Interest on Long-Term Debt 11.7 - 11.7
Water and Sewer - 1.4 1.4
Garbage - 0.1 0.1
Total Expenses 13.8 1.5 15.3
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (6.5) - (6.5)
Net Assets-Beginning as Restated 6.6 10.9 17.5
Net Assets-Ending 10.9 11.0

0.1




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - Continued

Net assets of the Village of Elwood’s governmental activities decreased substantially ($6.6
million compared to $0.1 million). This deficit arose primarily because of a restatement of assets.

Net assets of business-type activities remained unchanged, resulting in net assets of $10.9
million. The Village of Elwood generally can only use these net assets to finance the continuing
operations of the utility operations.

Governmental Activities

Revenues for governmental activities were $7.3 million for the year, with the largest portion of
revenue coming from property taxes ($3.3 million) Total expenses for the year were $13.8
million with the largest portion coming from the interest. expense on long-term debt ($11.7
million).

The main reason for the large amount of interest on long-term debt is related to the Tax
Increment Financing bonds outstanding at year end of $124,947,957.

The ‘Revenues by Source’ Table graphically depicts the major revenue sources of the Village of
Elwood. It depicts very clearly the reliance of property taxes (45%) and charges for services
(41%) to fund governmental activities. It also clearly identifies the minor percentage the Village
receives from sales taxes (only 3%). Under the Board’s leadership and the cooperation of the
industrial park, there continues to be an effort to develop and expand the TIF District and
develop capital infrastructure improvements to assist in that effort. It is then-anticipated that the
Village will see significant increases in sales tax revenues.

The ‘Expenses and Program Revenues’ Table identifies those governmental functions where
program expenses greatly exceed revenues. From the table, it can be noted that only the general
government function has enough revenues to meet program expenses. Particularly, the
$2,876,547 in revenues exceeds the $917,834 in expenses by $1,958, 713. None of the remaining
governmental functions are able to cover function expenditures.




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS — Continued

Governmental Activities — Continued

Revenues by Source - Governmenial Activities

Income Taxes
Sales Taxes 1%
%

Other
3%

Utility Taxes

3%
Charges for

Services
. 41%
Property Taxes
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4% Capital Grants
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS — Continued
Business-type activities

Total revenues of the Village’s business-type activities were $1.5 million, while expenses were
also $1.5 million, resulting in no change to net assets at the end of the year. The table below
compares program revenues and expenditures for the Water and Sewer Fund and the Garbage
Fund. Program revenues do not include revenues such as capital or operating
grants/contributions, therefore, in the Water and Sewer Fund, program revenues are significantly
lower than total revenues due to $80,718 in operating grants/contributions and $836,661 in
capital grants/contributions that are not considered program revenues.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type
Activities

@ Expenses

@ Program Revenues

Water and Sewer Garbage

The above graph compares program revenues to expenses for water and sewer operations, and
garbage operations. From the table it can be noted that the Garbage function is charging the
appropriate service charge to cover the garbage expenses, while the Water and Sewer program
revenues account for only 36% of the water and sewer program expenses ($528,246 in revenues,
compared to $1,453,781 in expenses).
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS — Continued
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Village of Elwood uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. - ' '

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $4,726,590, which is significantly below last year’s restated governmental fund
balances of $9,353,187. Included in this year’s total change in fund balance, however, is a
surplus of $268,769 in the General Fund, and a deficit of $1,967,413 in the Deer Run TIF Fund
and a deficit of $3,341,669 in the Road Improvements Fund. In addition, these other changes in
fund balances should be noted:

* The Village spent $3,896,0693 million this year on the road reconstruction projects,
reducing the beginning fund balance in the Phase 1 Fund by the same amount. This
reduction was expected because balances at the beginning of this year included the
proceeds of previous distributions from the industrial park developer. Although these and
other capital expenditures reduce available fund balances, they create new assets as
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and as discussed in Note 1 to the financial
statements. ‘

* Motor fuel tax funds, provided by the State, can only be used to replace, maintain, or

improve the Village’s roads. This year $53,482 was added to a fund balance of $302,129
to be used for future projects.

11



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS - Continued
Proprietary funds

The Village of Elwood’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The Village reports the Water and Sewer Fund as a major proprietary fund. This fund accounts
for all of the operations of the municipal water and sewer system. Water is sold to all municipal
customers at a flat rate of $28.27 for first 2,000 gallons and $1.60 per thousand gallons there
after. The spread between purchase and sale rates is intended to finance the operations of the
waterworks and sewerage system, including labor costs, supplies, and infrastructure
maintenance.

The Village intends to run the fund at a breakeven rate, with a contribution from the developer of
the industrial park. There was no change to net assets in the current year (total revenues and
expenses were $1,363,781).

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Actual charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $80,338 below the final budget amounts.
The most significant positive variance ($252,115) occurred in the public works account, due to

deferring improvements.

Resources available for appropriation (revenues) were $560,506 over the budgeted amount,
primarily due to increases in utility tax, sales tax, impact fees, and miscellaneous revenues.

12
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The Village of Elwood’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of April 30, 2005 was $143.6 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, land improvements,
vehicles, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, sidewalks, and bridges. The total
increase in the Village’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $8.1 million,
. or a 6 percent over the prior year.

Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation (in Millidns) :

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities. Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Land $ o1 0.1 1.9 19 2.0 2.0
Buildings and Improvements - - 11.7 12.0 11.7 12.0
Machinery & Equipment 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.4
Infrastructure 119.9 112.4 9.6 8.7 129.5 121.1
Total 120.3 112.8 23.3 22.7 143.6 135.5

This year’s major additions included (in millions):

Chicago Ave. reconstruction project, paid for with proceeds
from Phase 1 industrial park distributions $ 2,750,000

Mississippi St. improvements, paid for with proceeds
from Phase 1 industrial park distributions, state, developer 1,266,474

St Louis reconstruction project paid for with proceeds
from Phase 1 industrial park distributions 288,853

Jackson St. reconstruction project paid for with proceeds 1,998,650

from Phase 1 industrial park distributions
16,303,977

13



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION - Continued
Capital Assets - Continued

The fiscal year 2005 capital budget includes $5,628,978 for capital projects, principally for the
completion of its Chicago Avenue reconstruction project and the initial year of St. Louis,
Jackson, and Mississippi Streets.

Additional information on the Village’s capital assets can be found in note 3 on pages 42 - 43 of
this report.

Debt Administration

At year-end, the Village had total outstanding bonded debt of $139.4 million as compared to
$130 million the previous year, resulting in a 7 percent increase from the prior year. The
. following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt:

TIF Notes Payable and Loans Payable (in Millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

TIF Notes Payable $ 1249 1155 - - 1249 1155
Loans Payable - - 14.5 14.5 14.5 14.5
Total 124.9 1155 14.5 14.5 1394  130.0 -

The Village of Elwood has not yet been rated by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s for general
obligation debt. As a home-rule unit, no legal limit exists on the amount of debt that can be
outstanding.

Additional information on the Village’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on pages 44 — 47
of this report.

Y
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2005

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The Village’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-
year 2006 appropriation, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for its governmental and
business-type activities. One of those factors is the economy. Unemployment rates for April 30,
2005 for the Village of Elwood (Will County) is 6.2 percent, which is over the state
unemployment rate of 5.9 percent and the national unemployment rate of 5.6 percent.

Inflation increases in the metropolitan area continue to be somewhat higher than the national
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases. The metropolitan CPI increase was 2.4 percent for fiscal
year 2005 compared with the national rate of 2.5 percent.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2006.
Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund budget are $1,196,156, a decrease of
24% over the final 2005 budget of $1,484,298, basically due to a number of expenses being
transferred to the Special Service Area Fund. The sales tax base of the Village of Elwood
continues to remain stable, allowing the Village of Elwood to budget consistently for fiscal year
2006. Property taxes increased slightly and utility taxes are expected to lead further increases.
Budgeted expenditures are expected to decrease nearly 24 percent, due to the transfers to the
Special Service Area. Increased cost-of-living adjustments of 3.5%, along with market
adjustments in key positions, represent the largest increments. The Village has added some major
new programs and initiatives to the 2006 budget, including tree replacement, leak detection,
sanitary sewer televising, and valve testing.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Elwood’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of

the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be directed
to the Finance Office, Village of Elwood, P.O. Box 435, Elwood, Illinois, 60421.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the
GASB. The sets of statements include:

e Government-wide Financial Statements

¢ Fund Financial Statements
> Governmental Funds

> Proprietary Funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is
essential to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.






VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets
April 30, 2005
Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 4,192,884 2,052,658 6,245,542
Receivables - net 3,394,662 150,595 3,545,257
Prepaids 10,922 13,447 24,369
7,598,468 2,216,700 9,815,168
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable 50,000 1,909,500 1,959,500
Depreciable 120,755,552 22,552,833 143,308,385
Accumulated depreciation (505,252) (1,210,096) (1,715,348)
120,300,300 23,252,237 143,552,537
Total Assets 127,898,768 25,468,937 153,367,705
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 145,351 10,360 155,711
Accrued interest payable - 36,958 36,958
Unearned revenues 2,726,527 - 2,726,527
Current portion of long-term debt 3,732,738 - 3,732,738
6,604,616 47,318 6,651,934
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences payable 28,791 - 28,791
Loans payable - 14,500,000 14,500,000
TIF notes payable 121,222,417 - 121,222,417
121,251,208 14,500,000 135,751,208
Total Liabilities 127,855,824 14,547,318 142,403,142
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt (4,643,933) 23,252,237 18,608,304
Restricted - special revenues 393,550 - 393,550
Restricted - debt service 1,540,042 - 1,540,042
Unrestricted 2,753,285 (12,330,618) (9,577,333)
Total Net Assets 42,944 10,921,619 10,964,563

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General government

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation

Interest on long-term debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Garbage
Total Business-Type Activities

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants/ Grants/
Expenses Revenues Contributions Contribution
$ 917,834 2,876,547 - -
667,761 93,812 - -
416,868 - 50,837 167,369
, 74,198 33,884 - -
11,703,839 - - -
13,780,500 3,004,243 50,837 167,369
1,453,781 528,246 80,718 836,661
110,181 100,197 - -
1,563,962 628,443 80,718 836,661
15,344,462 3,632,686 131,555 1,004,030
General Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Utility taxes
Intergovernmental
Sales taxes
Income taxes
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Expense/Revenue

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
1,958,713 - 1,958,713
(573,949) , - (573,949)
(198,662) : - (198,662)
(40,314) - (40,314)
(11,703,839) - (11,703,839)
(10,558,051) - (10,558,051)
- (8,156) (8,156)
- (9,984) (9,984)
- (18,140) (18,140)
(10,558,051) (18,140) (10,576,191)
3,285,888 - 3,285,888
252,181 - 252,181
196,516 - 196,516
121,922 - 121,922
125,688 8,274 133,962
51,434 - 51,434
4,033,629 8,274 4,041,903
(6,524,422) (9,866) (6,534,288)
6,567,366 10,931,485 17,498,851
42,944 10,921,619 10,964,563

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
April 30, 2005

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables - net of allowances
Property taxes
Other taxes
Due from other funds
Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

. Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved - prepaid items
Reserved - parks
Reserved - debt service
Reserved - road improvements
Unreserved - general
Unreserved - special revenue
Unreserved - capital projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and -
Fund Balances

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 389,380

96,332
141,477

10,922

638,111

102,645

96,332

198977

10,922
37,939

390,273

439,134

638,111




Nonmajor Total
Deer Run CenterPoint Road Governmental Governmental
TIF Phase I Improvements Funds Funds
1,540,042 1,869,571 - 393,891 4,192,884
2,630,195 - - - 522,812 3,249,339
’ - - - 3,846 145,323
- 3,236,129 - - 3,236,129
- - - - 10,922
4,170,237 5,105,700 - 920,549 10,834,597
- 36,328 - 6,378 145,351
- - 2,803,374 432,755 3,236,129
2,630,195 - - - 2,726,527
2,630,195 36,328 2,803,374 439,133 6,108,007
- - - - 10,922
- - - - 37,939
1,540,042 - - - 1,540,042
- - - 27,888 27,888
- - - - 390,273
- - - 453,528 453,528
- 5,069,372 (2,803,374) - 2,265,998
1,540,042 5,069,372 (2,803,374) 481,416 4,726,590
4,170,237 - 920,549 10,834,597

5,105,700

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

April 30, 2005

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are Different Because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.-

Long-term liabilites are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
TIF notes payable

Compensated absences payable

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
April 30, 2005
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2005

General
Revenues
Taxes $ 327,232
Intergovernmental 311,445
Charges for services 448,767
Licenses and permits 172,993
Fines and forfeits 93,812
Interest 580
Miscellaneous 48,240
Total Revenues 1,403,069
Expenditures
Current
General government 797,779
Public safety 439,613
Public works 246,908
Parks-and recreation -
Capital outlay -
Debt service
Principal retirement -
Total Expenditures 1,484,300
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (81,231)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 350,000
Transfers out -
350,000
Net Change in Fund Balance 268,769
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated 170,365

Fund Balance - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
: ” .

439,134




Center Nonmajor Total
Deer Run Point Road Governmental Go_vemmental
TIF Phase I Improvements Funds Funds
2,688,025 - - 522,812 3,53’8_,069 :
6,993 - 167,369 50,837 536,644
- 2,218,744 36,043 33,884 2,737,438
- - - - 172,993
- - - - 93,812
17,701 59,912 40,185 7,310 125,688
- - - 3,194 51,434
2,712,719 2,278,656 243,597 618,037 7,256,078
129,698 - - - 927,477
- - - 250,156 689,769
- - - 177,724 424,632
- - - 74,198 74,198
- 3,896,069 3,585,266 - 7,481,335
2,285,264 - - - 2,285,264
2,414,962 3,896,069 3,585,266 502,078 11,882,675
297,757 (1,617,413) (3,341,669) 115,959 (4,626,597)
- - - - 350,000
- (350,000) - - (350,000)
- (350,000) - - -
297,757 (1,967,413) (3,341,669) 115,959 (4,626,597)
1,242,285 7,036,785 538,295 365,457 9,353,187
1,540,042 5,069,372 (2,803,374) 481,416 4,726,590
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlays
Depreciation expense

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of the governmental funds.

Additions to TIF accretion bonds '
Retirement of TIF accretion bonds
Additions to compensated absences payable

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(4,626,597)

7,595,316
(67,765)

(11,703,839)
2,285,264
(6,801)

(6,524,422)




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
April 30, 2005

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables - net of allowances
Accounts
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Capital Assets
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable'
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable

Long-term Liabilities
Loans payable

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net
of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

Water
and Nonmajor
Sewer Garbage Totals
2,052,658 - 2,052,658
140,411 10,184 150,595
3,826 - 3,826
13,447 - 13,447
2,210,342 10,184 2,220,526
1,909,500 - 1,909,500
22,552,833 - 22,552,833
(1,210,096) - (1,210,096)
23,252,237 - 23,252,237
25,462,579 10,184 25,472,763
10,360 - 10,360
- 3,826 3,826
36,958 - 36,958
47,318 3,826 51,144
14,500,000 - 14,500,000
14,547,318 3,826 14,551,144
23,252,237 - 23,252,237
(12,336,976) 6,358 (12,330,618)
10,915,261 6,358 10,921,619
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

Year Ended April 30, 2005
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water
and Nonmajor
Sewer Garbage Totals

Operating Revenues _

Charges for services - $ 528,246 100,197 628,443
Opérating Expenses

Water operations 571,321 - 571,321

Sewer operations 282,111 - 282,111

Garbage operations - 110,181 110,181

Depreciation ' 510,349 - 510,349

Total Operating Expenses - 1,363,781 110,181 1,473,962 '

Operating Income (Loss) (835,535) (9,984) (845,519) '
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital reimbursements. 836,661 - 836,661

Operating reimbursements 80,718 - 80,718

Interest income 8,156 118 8,274 -

Interest and fiscal charges : (90,000) - (90,000)

835,535 118 835,653
Change in Net Assets - : (9,866) (9,866)
Net Assets - Beginning as Restated 10,915,261 16,224 10,931,485 -
Net Assets - Ending 10,915,261 6,358 10,921,619
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. :
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

- Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers -

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating reimbursements

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets ‘
Capital reimbursements
Interest paid on capital debt

- Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in current assets
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water
and Nonmajor
Sewer Garbage Totals
413,579 98,454 512,033
(66,398) - (66,398)
(825,773) (114,164) (939,937)
(478,592) (15,710) (494,302)
80,718 - 80,718
(1,479,833) - (1,479,833)
1,176,201 - 1,176,201
(53,042) - (53,042)
(356,674) - (356,674)
8,156 118 8,274
(746,392) (15,592) (761,984)
2,799,050 15,592 2,814,642
2,052,658 - 2,052,658
(835,535) (9,984) (845,519)
510,349 - 510,349
269,911 (1,743) 268,168
(423,317) (3,983) (427,300)
356,943 (5,726) 351,217
(478,592) (15,710) (494,302)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Village of Elwood, Illinois, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected president and six-
member Board of Trustees. The Village’s major operations include highway and street maintenance and
reconstruction, forestry, building code enforcement, public improvements, economic development,
planning and zoning, water, sewer and garbage services and general administrative services.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not
conflict with or contradict GASB Pronouncements. Although the Village has the option to apply FASB
pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the Village
has chosen not to do so. The more significant of the Village’s accounting policies established in GAAP
and used by the Village are described below.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State

and Local Governments. For the first time the financial statements include:

A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an
analysis of the Village’s overall financial position and results of operations.

Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Village’s
activities, including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.).

A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to
financial statements). The Village has elected to implement the provisions of Statement No. 34 in the
current year.
REPORTING ENTITY
The Village’s financial reporting entity comprises the following:

Primary Government: Village of Elwood
In determining the financial reporting entity, the Village complies with the provisions of GASB

Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” and includes all component units that have a
significant operational or financial relationship with the Village.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Statements

The Village’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Village as a
- whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Village’s major funds). Both the government-wide
and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The
Village’s highway and street maintenance and reconstruction, forestry, building code enforcement,
public improvements, economic development, planning and zoning, and general administrative services
are classified as governmental activities. The Village’s water, sewer and garbage services are classified
as business-type activities. '

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities

~columns are: (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The Village’s net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The Village first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Village’s functions and business-type activities (general government, public safety, public works, etc.)
The functions are supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.).

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program
revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function
(general government, public safety, public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants
column reflects capital-specific grants. '

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property
tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc).

The Village does not allocate indirect costs. An administrative service fee is charged by the General
Fund to the other operating funds that is eliminated like a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and
expense in the General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance,
personnel, purchasing, legal, technology management, etc.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Village as an entity and ‘the change in
the Village’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued
Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Village are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The emphasis in fund
financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities
categories.

Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth
minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund
category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.

The Village electively added funds, as major funds, which either had debt outstanding or specific
community focus. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements.A
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Village or meets the following
criteria:

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the
corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the

individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The
following fund types are used by the Village:
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements — Continued

Governméntal Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) -
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Village:

General fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is a major fund.

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally .
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal and interest. The Village maintains one major debt service fund, the
Deer Run TIF Fund, which accounts for revenues received from incremental property taxes and
expenditures for debt service payments related to tax increment financing bonds.

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).
The Village maintains two major capital projects funds, the CenterPoint Phase I Fund and the Road
Improvements Fund. The CenterPoint Phase I Fund accounts for revenues received from development
fees and expenditures for capital construction projects, including road construction and a new village -
hall facility. The Road Improvements Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures relative to the
construction of road improvements.

Proprietary Funds
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are

those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary fund
of the Village:
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VILLAGE OF EL,WOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

. BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements — Continued
Proprietary Funds — Continued

Enterprise funds are required to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net
revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be
recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed
to recover similar costs. The Village maintains one major enterprise fund, the Water and Sewer Fund,
which accounts for revenues and expenses relative to the operation of the water and sewer utilities.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both governmental
ahd business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources’” measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements
present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds
use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

All proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued
Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year-end.The
Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and available in accordance with
GASB Codification Section P70. A sixty day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all
other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are
recognized when due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those revenues
susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue,
and charges for services. All other revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are
not measurable until received in cash. :

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when eamned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Village’s enterprise funds, are charges to customers for sales and services. The Village also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. -

35




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY
Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Net Assets are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, cash with fiscal agent. For the purpose of the proprietary funds “Statement of Cash Flows”,
cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent,
and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price.
Investments that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated fair value.

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Activity

. Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted
as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this report are
recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

R_eceivables

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and
the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivables balances for governmental activities
include property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, and grants. Business-type activities report
utility charges as their major receivables. '
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $500 or more are reported at historical cost
or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received.
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset
are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the Village as a whole. Infrastructure such as
streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets are
historical cost, or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement
COsts.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The
valuation bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital
assets. Donated capital assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over
the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements 10— 40 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3 -10 Years
Infrastructure 25 —50 Years

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the Village to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective
with the beginning of the current year. Infrastructure assets include roads, sidewalks, underground pipe
(other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assets are the largest asset class
of the Village. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported in the
financial statements.

Compensated Absences

The Village accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and associated employee-related costs when earned
(or estimated to be earned) by the employee. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, no liability is
recorded for nonvesting accumulation rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is
recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave that is estimated to be taken as “terminal leave”
prior to retirement.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued
Compensated Absences — Continued

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide
statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable
available financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

" Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
- using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three
components: - ‘

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt—Consists of capital assets
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. :
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued
Fund Equity — Continued

Restricted net assets—Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the
use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislations.

Unrestricted net assets—All other net assets that do not meet the definition
of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific
purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Prior to April
30, the Village Clerk submits to the Village Board a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing May 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to July 31, the budget is
legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The Village Clerk is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund,
however, the Village Board must approve revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund. Formal
budgetary integration is employed at a management control device during the year for the General
Fund. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted by the Board of Trustees. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the year several supplementary
appropriations were necessary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continued

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET IN INDIVIDUAL
FUNDS '

The following funds had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses, exclusive of depreciation, over
budget for the fiscal year.

Fund Excess
Garbage $ 2,071
Children's Garden 2,244
Park 2,117
Road Improvements 3,585,266
CenterPoint Phase I 3,896,069
Deer Run Tax Increment Financing 2,204,462
Water and Sewer 39,446

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The following funds have deficit fund equity for the fiscal year:

Fund Deficit
Children's Garden $ 362 -
Road Improvements 2,803,374

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS : T
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except the
pension trust funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as
"cash and investments". In addition, investments are separately held by several of the Village's funds.
The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS — Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Village to make deposits/invest in
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies,
obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements,
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating
services, and Illinois Funds. The Illinois Funds are external investment pools regulated by. state
statutes; the pools value participant’s shares on a fair value basis.

At year-end the carrying amount of the Village's deposits and investments totaled $6,245,542, and the
bank balances totaled $6,461,652.

Bank
“Balances

Category 1

Deposits covered by federal depository insurance, or by collateral held by the

Village, or its agent, in the Village's name. $ 4,947,400
Category 2

Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging financial institution's trust

department, or by its agent, in the Village's name. ' -
Category 3

Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging financial institution, or its trust

department, or its agent but not in the Village's name, and deposits which are

uninsured and uncollateralized. -

Total Deposits 4,947,400

Noncategorizable Investments

Illinois Funds 1,514,252

Total Deposits and Investments 6,461,652

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes for 2005 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2005, on property values assessed
as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax
Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by Will County and are payable in two installments, on or
about June 1, 2006, and September 1, 2006. The County collects. such taxes and remits them
periodically.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets- Not Being Depreciated
Land :

Other Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Other Capital Assets

Total Capital Assets -

Beginning-
Balances Ending
As Restated Increases Decreases Balances
50,000 - 50,000
273,441 - 273,441 -
456,524 113,981 570,505
112,430,271 7,481,335 119,911,606
113,160,236 7,595,316 120,755,552
273,441 - 273,441
164,046 67,765 231,811
437,487 67,765 505,252
112,722,749 7,527,551 120,250,300
112,772,749 7,527,551 120,300,300

Governmental capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Government

Public Safety
Public Works
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued
Business-Type Activities

Business-type capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Balances
Capital Assets - Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 1,909,500 - 1,909,500
Other Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements ‘ 12,651,715 - 12,651,715
Machinery and Equipment 115,100 14,550 129,650
“Infrastructure 8,710,448 1,061,020 9,771,468
21,477,263 1,075,570 22,552,833
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 683,304 319,697 1,003,001
Machinery and Equipment 16,443 16,443 32,886
- Infrastructure - 174,209 174,209
699,747 510,349 1,210,096
Total Other Capital Assets 20,777,516 565,221 21,342,737
Total Capital Assets 22,687,016 565,221 23,252,237
Depreciation expense was charged to business-type as follows:
Water and Sewer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund receivables and payables

The composition of interfund balances as of the date of this report, is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
CenterPoint Phase I Road Improvements $ 2,803,374
CenterPoint Phase I Special Service Area 432,755

3,236,129

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year consisted of the following:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fund CenterPoint Phase I Fund $ 350,000

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service
from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due,
and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

LONG-TERM DEBT
TIF Notes Payable

Tax increment financing notes currently outstanding are as follows:

Balances
May 1 Balances
Issue As Restated Issuances Retirements April 30
Tax Increment Financing Notes
0f 2003 $ 115,529,382 11,703,839 2,285,264 124,947,957
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Loans Payable

Loans payable currently outstanding are as follows:

Balances Balances
Issue : May 1 Issuances  Retirements April 30
Department of Commerce and
Economic Opportunity loans due
in annual installments of $90,000
to $1,740,000 plus interest at 0%
to 5.17% through September 1,
2022 $§ 14,500,000 - - 14,500,000
Long-term Liability Activity
Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows:
Beginning Amounts
Balances Ending Due within
Type of Debt As Restated Additions  Deductions Balances One Year
Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $ 29,188 11,244 4,443 35,989 7,198
TIF Notes Payable 115,529,382 11,703,839 2,285,264 124,947,957 -
115,558,570 11,715,083 2,289,707 124,983,946 7,198
Business-type Activities
Loans Payable 14,500,000 - : - 14,500,000 , -

Payments on the TIF Notes Payable are made by the Deer Run TIF Fund. The Water and Sewer Fund
makes payments on the loans payable. For the governmental activities, compensated absences are

generally liquidated by the general fund.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows:

- Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year ' Loans 5
Ending Payable :
April 30 Principal Interest
2006 $ - 210,000
2007 90,000 335,000
2008 90,000 527,997
2009 470,000 740,344
2010 ' 470,000 716,045
2011 : 870,000 691,746
2012 870,000 646,767
2013 870,000 601,788
2014 870,000 556,809
2015 870,000 511,830
2016 870,000 466,851
2017 870,000 421,872
2018 ' 870,000 376,893
2019 1,140,000 331,914
2020 1,140,000 . 272,976
2021 . 1,740,000 214,038
2022 1,200,000 124,080
2023 1,200,000 62,040
Total 14,500,000 7,808,990

Legal Debt Margin

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides that the General Assembly may
- limit the amount and require referenda for approval of debt payable from ad valorem property taxes in
excess of one percent of assessed valuation. However, no such statute has been enacted as of this date.
Therefore, as a home rule municipality, the Village of Elwood, Illinois has no debt limit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Defeased Debt

In prior years the government defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds
in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Since the
requirements which normally satisfy defeasance have be met, the financial statements reflect
satisfaction of the original liability through the irrevocable transfer to an escrow agent of an amount
computed to be adequate to meet the future debt service requirements of the issue. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the government’s basic
financial statements. Defeased bonds of $350,000 remain outstanding as of the date of this report.

FUND EQUITY

Restatements

During the current fiscal year, the Village increased beginning fund equity in the General Fund to
reflect errors in recognition of receivables, payables, prepaids and transfers. Beginning fund equity in
the CenterPoint Phase I Fund was decreased to reflect an error in recognition of transfers. The Village
also decreased beginning fund equity in the Deer Run TIF Fund to reflect an error in recognition of
receivables. In the Road Improvements Fund, beginning fund equity was increased to reflect an error in
recognition of assets. Beginning fund equity in the Water and Sewer Fund was decreased to reflect an
error in recognition of payables, capital assets and prepaids. As a result, beginning fund equity has been
restated as follows:

Fund Equity As Reported As Restated Increase
General $ (786,359) 170,365 956,724
CenterPoint Phase I 7,881,682 7,036,785 (844,897
Deer Run TIF 1,597,148 1,242,285 (354,863)
Road Improvements 488,202 538,295 50,093
Water and Sewer 27,570,168 10,915,261 (16,654,907)

Reserved for Special Revenues

The following is a schedule of fund balance reservations for special or restricted revenues as of the date
of this report:

_Amount
Reserved for Special Revenues
Motor Fuel Tax $ 355,611
Parks 37.939

—393.550
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the Village’s employees. These risks are
provided for through insurance from private insurance companies. The Village currently reports all its
risk management activities in the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund. There were no significant
changes in insurance coverages from the prior year and settlements did not exceed insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

| POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Village provides COBRA health benefits to all prior employees as required by federal law. The
prior employee pays 100 percent of the premium.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the Village’s attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Village.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The Village contributes to one defined benefit pension plan, the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
(IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. IMRF issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the plan as a whole, but not by in individual employer. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Ilinois
60523. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed
by Illinois Compiled Statutes and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.

48




VILLAGE OF EEWOOD, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2005

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS — Continued

All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be
enrolled in IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service.
Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with 8 years of service are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3 percent of their final rate
(average of the highest 48 consecutive months' earnings during the last 10 years) of earnings, for
each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2 percent for each year thereafter. IMRF also
provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by state statute.

Employees participating in the plan are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered
salary to IMRF. The employees’ contribution rate is established by state statute. The District is required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for calendar year 2004 was 8.98
percent.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

For December 31, 2004, the Village’s annual pension cost of $42,765 was equal to the Village’s
required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December
31, 2002 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 0.4% to 11.6% per year, and (c) 3.0% per year cost-of-living adjustments. Both
(a) and (b) included an inflation component of 4.0%. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period. IMRF’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a
level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December
31, 2004 was 32 years.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS — Continued
Trend Information

Empléyer annual required contributions (ARC), actual contributions and the net pension obligation

(NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the ARC and the contributions
actually made.

Annual Pension Cost 2002 N/A

(APC) 2003 23,646
2004 42,765
Actual Contributions 2002 N/A
2003 - 23,646
2004 42,765
Percentage of APC 2002 N/A
Contributed 2003 100.00%
2004 100.00%
Net Pension Obligation 2002 N/A -
2003 N/A
2004 N/A

50




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are
required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such
information includes:

e Schedule of Funding Progress
> Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

e Employer Contributions
> lilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

» Budgetary Comparison Schedules — General Fund
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Information — Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.






VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2005
(6)
Unfunded
(Overfunded)
Actuarial
“) ~ Accrued
) Unfunded Liability
(1) Actuarial (Overfunded) asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (3) Actuarial ®) Percentage
Valuation Value Liability . Funded Accrued Annual of Covered
Date of Plan (AAL) Ratio Liability Covered Payroll
Dec. 31 Assets - Entry Age 1 +Q) 2)-) Payroll 4) = (5
1999 $ NA $§ NA N/A $ NA § NA N/A
2000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2001 v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2002 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2003 35,295 68,596 51.45% 33,301 263,316 12.65%
2004 98,499 194,429 50.66% 95,930 476,228 20.14%
N/A - Prior to the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation date, the Village was not a member of the Illinois

Municipal Retirement Fund.

51



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Employer Contributions
April 30, 2005

Annual

Calendar Employer Pension Percent
Year Contributions Cost Contributed
1999 $ NA § NA N/A
2000 N/A N/A N/A
2001 N/A N/A N/A
2002 N/A N/A N/A
2003 23,646 23,646 100.00%
2004 42,765 42,765 100.00%
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety

Public works
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated

Fund Balance - Ending

Budget
Original Final Actual
$ 280,612 280,612 327,232
154,138 154,138 311,445
169,871 169,871 448,767
207,325 207,325 172,993
25,000 25,000 93,812
4,917 4,917 580
700 700 48,240

842,563 842,563 1,403,069
538,644 538,644 797,779
680,901 680,901 439,613
499,023 499,023 246,908
1,718,568 1,718,568 1,484,300
(876,005) (876,005) (81,231)
115,506 115,506 350,000
(760,499) (760,499) 268,769
170,365

439,134
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the
GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional
analysis.
Such statements and schedules include:

* Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Major Governmental

* Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental

* Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Enterprise Funds

¢ Schedule of Governmental Capital Assets



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than - fiduciary funds or capital projects funds) that are legally restricted to expendlture for
specified purposes.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund
The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is used to account for the revenues received from the Village’s
allocation of state gasoline taxes and the expenditures for street construction and maintenance,
which must be authorized by the Illinois Department of Transportation.
Park Fund

The Park Fund is used to account for revenues received from impact fees and the expenditures
for park operations and improvements.

Special Service Area Fund

The Special Service Area Fund is used to account for revenues received from special service area
property taxes and expenditures for maintenance within the special service area.

Children’s Garden Fund

The Children’s Garden Fund is used to account for revenues received from donations and
expenditures for maintenance and improvements at the Children’s Garden.




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - Continued

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Funds are created to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

Deer Run Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund
The Deer Run Tax Increment Financing Fund is used to account for revenues received from

incremental property taxes and expenditures for debt service payments related to tax increment
financing bonds.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital
facilities by a governmental unit except those financed by Proprietary Funds.

CenterPoint Phase I Fund
The CenterPoint Phase I Fund is used to account for revenues received from development fees
and expenditures for capital construction projects, including road construction and a new village
hall facility.

Road Improvements Fund

The Road Improvements Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures relative to the
construction of road improvements. '



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or where it has been decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incwrred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purpose.

Water and Sewer Fund

The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses relative to the operation
of the water and sewer utilities.

Garbage Fund

The Garbage Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses relative to the disposal of
residential solid waste.




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Taxes
Property taxes
Personal property replacement tax
Road and bridge tax
Utility tax

Intergovernmental
Sales tax
Home rule sales tax
Income tax
Local use tax

Charges for services
CenterPoint administrative fees
Overweight truck fee
Inspection fees
Cable franchise fees
Impact fees
Other

Licenses and permits
Building permits
Liquor licenses
Vehicle stickers
Business licenses
Contractor registration

Fines and forfeits
Police fines

54

Original Final Actual
$ 45112 45,112 45,131
500 500 754
45,000 45,000 29,166
190,000 190,000 252,181
280,612 280,612 327,232
10,000 10,000 53,129
10,000 10,000 136,394
117,713 117,713 105,155
16,425 16,425 16,767
154,138 154,138 311,445
106,121 106,121 108,243
24,000 24,000 7,250
33,750 33,750 20,100
6,000 6,000 6,159
- - 23,409
- - 283,606
169,871 169,871 448 767
185,625 185,625 149,087

1,700 1,700 -
10,000 10,000 15,600
1,500 1,500 3,281
8,500 8,500 5,025
207,325 207,325 172,993
25,000 25,000 93,812




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Interest
Investment income

Miscellaneous -

. Donations
Police reports
Lease agreement
Miscellaneous

" Total Revenues

55

Budget

Original Final - Actual
$ 4917 4,917 580

100 100 -

100 100 -
- - 3,699
500 500 44 541
700 700 48,240
842.563 842.563 1,403,069




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

General Government
Administration

Salaries

Administration benefits
Employee group insurance
. Financial consultants
Audit

Engineering services

Legal services

Telephone

Inspectors - reinspections
Electric

Mosquito abatement
Animal control

Custodial services
Insurance - liability/workers compensation
Printing/binding

Dues and subscriptions
Office equipment maintenance
Office supplies

Gas and oil

Vehicle supplies

Other supplies

Postage

Contingencies

Bank charges
Miscellaneous

Equipment

Data processing equipment
Reimburseable sales tax

Total Administration

Building
Salaries
Administration benefits
Employee group insurance

Original Final Actual
$ 137,982 137,982 118,133
22,718 22,718 15,387
14,197 14,197 11,221
15,000 15,000 33,872
4,875 4,875 4,875
5,000 5,000 186,272
114,000 114,000 144,303
7,447 7,447 5,898
- - 650
4,000 4,000 1,067
5,000 5,000 10,598
500 500 780
1,800 1,800 2,695
4,114 4,114 2,983
3,600 3,600 5,770
4,231 4,231 5,325
1,550 1,550 875
6,000 6,000 15,683
1,000 1,000 2,364
200 200 17
500 500 1,017
3,000 3,000 2,000
1,000 1,000 5,236
2,000 2,000 2,237
11,000 11,000 4,690
1,000 1,000 10,331
13,000 13,000 13,344
- - 8,555
384,714 384,714 616,178
61,000 61,000 106,373
14,851 14,851 10,770
17,204 17,204

56

2,630



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Continued

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual -
Year Ended April 30, 2005
. Budget
Original Final Actual
General Government - Continued
Building - Continued
Professional services $ 50,000 50,000 53,948
Data Processing 1,000 1,000 -
Uniform Rental 600 - 600 -
Travel and meetings 500 500 2,591
Electric 300 300 -
Telephone 1,000 1,000 -
Dues and subscriptions - 875 875 917
Maps and plats 500 500 2,520
Vehicle maintenance 500 500 -
Office supplies 1,000 1,000 94
Gas and oil 1,000 1,000 -
Photo supplies 600 600 -
Contingencies 1,000 1,000 -
Miscellaneous 500 500 1,458
Purchase equipment 500 500 -
Building improvements 1,000 1,000 300
Total Building 153,930 153,930 181,601
Total General Government 538,644 538,644 797,779
Public Safety
Police
Salaries 399,382 399,382 306,931
Administration benefits 54,257 54,257 40,639
Employee group insurance 55,264 55,264 18,252
Legal services 5,000 5,000 15,026
Data processing 1,500 1,500 356
Insurance - liability/workers compensation 8,949 8,949 3,855
Printing/binding 300 300 682
Dues and subscriptions 1,000 1,000 474
Telephone , 2,589 2,589 6,441
Office equipment maintenance 1,500 249

1,500
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Public Safety - Continued

Police - Continued-

* Radio maintenance
Vehicle maintenance
Crime prevention

_ Training
Travel and meetings
Custodial services
Medical expenses
Animal control
Rental
Office supplies
Gas and oil
Uniforms
Photo supplies
Postage
Ammunition
Other supplies
Contingencies
Agreements
Miscellaneous
Equipment
Vehicles

- Data processing equipment

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Streets
Salaries
Administration benefits
Employee group insurance
Professional services
Data processing
Impact fee engineering

Budget
Original Final Actual
$ 3,850 3,850 1,285
12,700 12,700 9,813
500 500 -
8,000 8,000 1,741
- - 41
1,800 1,800 1,312
840 840 362
500 500 362
2,520 2,520 1,038
6,000 6,000 1,098
13,000 13,000 12,324
9,600 9,600 1,700
500 500 -
500 - 500 486
1,000 1,000 118
1,850 1,850 1,013
1,000 1,000 416
22,600 22,600 5,551
500 500 77
10,400 10,400 5,792
52,500 52,500 -
1,000 1,000 2,179
680,901 680,901 439,613
144,836 144,836 58,907
24,015 24,015 9,940
29,045 29,045 7,335
31,000 31,000 1,200
1,000 1,000 -
- - 7,062
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Public Works - Continued

Streets - Continued
Uniform rentals
Street cleaning
Travel and meetings
Tree removal
Truck Inspections
Electric
Telephone
Heating
Equipment rentals
Communication repairs
Building maintenance
Street light maintenance
Vehicle maintenance
Office supplies
Vehicle supplies
Gas and oil
Gravel
Asphalt and sealer
Operating supplies
Restoration materials
Drainage materials
Traffic signs and safety materials
Small tools and equipment
Contingencies
Miscellaneous
Equipment
Village building improvements
Vehicle
Road maintenance
Data processing equipment

Total Public Works

Total Expenditures

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 1,900 1,900 2,935
6,000 6,000 6,739
500 500 1,274
3,000 3,000 1,200
200 200 18
20,400 20,400 35,885
486 486 1,335
13,041 13,041 7,648
2,000 2,000 580
600 600 205
1,500 1,500 3,657
1,000 1,000 439
1,000 1,000 3,174
1,000 1,000 1,735
3,500 3,500 3,204
6,000 6,000 4,929
2,000 2,000 1,958
3,000 3,000 2,464
8,000 8,000 8,396
5,000 5,000 863
2,000 2,000 1,497
2,000 2,000 4,603
4,500 4,500 3,322
1,000 1,000 544
81,500 81,500 1,509
11,000 11,000 10,246
1,000 1,000 6,708
28,000 28,000 28,309
55,000 55,000 14,903
3,000 3,000 2,185
499,023 499,023 246,908
1,718,568 1,718,568 1,484,300
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Deer Run Tax Increment Financing - Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenués, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Taxes ‘ .
Property taxes $ - - 2,688,025
Intergovernmental '
Incremental sales taxes - - 6,993
Interest ' ' - ’ - 17,701
Total Revenues - - 2,712,719
Expenditures ,
General government
Management fees , ‘ - - 21,455
Administrative reimbursement - - 108,243
Debt service »
Principal retirement ' 210,500 210,500 2,285,264
210,500 210,500 2,414,962
Net Change in Fund Balance (210,500) (210,500) 297,757
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated 1,242,285

Fund Balance - Ending
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1,540,042



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
CenterPoint - Phase I - Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Revenues
Charges for services
Development fees
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Chicago Street
Mississippi Street
St. Louis Street
Jackson / Matteson Streets
Village Hall
" Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated

Fund Balance - Ending

Budget
Original Final Actual

$ 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 2,218,744

132,157 132,157 59,912

1,132,157 1,132,157 2,278,656

- - 2,077,502

- - 1,380,525

- - 360,229

- - 59,513

250,000 250,000 18,300

250,000 250,000 3,896,069
882,157 882,157 (1,617,413)
(350,000) (350,000) (350,000)
532,157 532,157 (1,967,413)

7,036,785

5,069,372
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Road Improvements - Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental
Grants $ - - 167,369
Charges for services '
Development fees _ - - 36,043
Interest - - 40,185
Total Revenues - - 243,597
Expenditures
Capital outlay
Road engineering - - 87,833
Baselineé road construction C- - 249,614
East access road construction - - 302,824
Mississippi and Drummond construction - - 2,855,210
Central industrial road construction - - 52,859
Miscellaneous - - 36,926
Total Expenditures - : - 3,585,266
Net Change in Fund Balance : - - - (3,341,669) .
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated 538,295

Fund Balance - Ending
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(2,803,374)



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

April 30, 2005
4 Special Revenue Funds Total
Motor Special Nonmajor
Fuel Service Children's Governmental
Tax Park Area Garden Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 351,765 37,939 - 4,187 393,891
Receivables
Property taxes - - 522,812 - 522,812
Other taxes 3,846 - - - 3,846
Total Assets 355,611 37,939 522,812 4,187 920,549
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable - - 1,829 4,549 6,378
Due to other funds - - 432,755 - 432,755
Total Liabilities - - 434,584 4,549 439,133
Fund Balances
Reserved-road improvements - - 27,888 - 27,888
Unreserved 355,611 37,939 60,340 (362) 453,528
- Total Fund Balances 355,611 37,939 88,228 (362) 481,416
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances 355,611 37,939 522,812 4,187 920,549
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Special Revenue Funds Total
Motor Special Nonmajor
Fuel Service Children's Governmental
Tax Park Area Garden Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ - - 522,812 - 522,812
Intergovernmental 50,837 - - — 50,837
Charges for services - 26,741 - 7,143 33,884
Miscellaneous - - - 7,310 - 7,310
Interest 2,645 420 - 129 3,194
Total Revenues 53,482 27,161 522,812 14,582 618,037
Expenditures
Public safety - - 250,156 - 250,156
Public works - - 177,724 - 177,724
Parks and recreation - 59,254 - 14,944 74,198
Total Expenditures - 59,254 427,880 14,944 502,078
Net Change in Fund Balances 53,482 (32,093) 94,932 362) 1 15,959
Fund Balances - Beginning 302,129 70,032 (6,704) - 365,457
Fund Balances - Ending 355,611 37,939 88,228 (362) 481,416
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Motor Fuel Tax - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Revenues
~ Intergovernmental
~ Motor fuel tax allotments
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures.
Public works

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending
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Budget
Original Final Actual
48,098 48,098 50,837
8,420 8,420 2,645
- 56,518 56,518 53,482
56,518 56,518 53,482
302,129

355,611




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Park - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Revenues

Charges for services
Impact fees
Registration fees
Rental fees

Miscellaneous

Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Parks and recreation
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

66

Budget ‘
Original Final Actual’
$ 25,000 25,000 17,821
8,000 8,000 8,420
500 500 500
1,000 1,000 -

2,081 2,081 420

- 36,581 36,581 27,161
57,137 57,137 59,254
(20,556) (20,556) 1(32,093)
70,032

37,939



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Park - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Parks and Recreation

Salaries

Administration benefits
Employee group insurance
' Repairs and maintenance
Cleaning

Referees

Instructors

Legal

Consultant study
Postage

Advertising

Printing

General supplies
Development supplies
Materials

Miscellaneous
Entertainment donations

Total Expenditures
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~ Budget
Original Final Actual
$ 12,833 12,833 23,199
2,169 2,169 2,012
2,651 2,651 -
1,000 1,000 870
1,000 1,000 -
800 800 825
5,000 5,000 1,632
1,000 1,000 10
5,000 5,000 -
1,000 1,000 -
1,000 1,000 -
1,000 1,000 239
184 184 1,817
- - 3,500
5,000 5,000 21,838
16,500 16,500 3,312
1,000 1,000 -
57,137 57,137 59,254




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Special Service Area - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Budget
Original Final Actual
Revenues
Taxes
Property tax $ - - 522,812
Expenditures
Public safety ' 271,923 271,923 250,156
Public works 210,500 210,500 177,724
‘Total Expenditures 482,423 482,423 427,880
Net Change in Fund Balance (482,423) (482,423) 94,932
Fund Balance - Beginning (6,704)

Fund Balance - Ending
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88,228



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Special Service Area - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Public Safety
Salaries
Benefits
Training
Uniforms
‘Automotive _
Supplies and materials

Total Public Safety

Public Works

Salaries

Benefits
“Uniforms

Snow removal
Administrative/legal
Retention pond maintenance
Roadway maintenance

Total Public Works

Total Expenditures

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 194,923 194,923 112,732
45,000 45,000 49,935
3,000 3,000 1,670
4,000 4,000 2,078
15,000 15,000 63,001
10,000 © 10,000 20,740
271,923 271,923 250,156
-50,000 50,000 43,209
35,000 35,000 28,052
1,500 1,500 791
35,000 35,000 30,199
35,000 35,000 32,735
40,000 40,000 5,400
14,000 14,000 37,338
210,500 210,500 177,724
482,423 482,423 427,880
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Children's Garden - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Revenues
Charges for services
Event fees
Miscellaneous
Donations
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Parks and recreation

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending
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Budget

Original Final Actual
) ; 7,143

6,100 6,100 7,310

) - 129

6,100 6.100 14,582
12,700 12,700 14,944
(6,600) (6,600) (362)

(362)



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Water and Sewer - Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Water operations
Sewer operations
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Capital reimbursements
Operting reimbursements
Interest income
Interest and fiscal charges
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning as Restated

Net Assets - Ending
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Budget
Original Final Actual
$ 286473 286,473 528,246
465,882 465,882 571,321
348,084 348,084 282,111
- - 510,349
813,966 813,966 1,363,781
(527,493) (527,493) (835,535)
100 100 836,661
: - 80,718
26,102 26,102 8,156
- - (90,000)
26,202 26,202 835,535
(501,291) (501,291) -
10,915,261
10,915,261




VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Water and Sewer - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Revenues - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Budget
Original Final Actual
~ Charges for Services
Water charges $ 133,300 - 133,300 166,061
Sewer charges : 146,923 146,923 177,284
Water tap on fees - - 112,428
Sewer tap on fees - - 61,268
Meter sales 6,250 6,250 11,205
Total Operating Revenues 286,473 286,473 528,246
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Water and Sewer - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Budget
Original Final Actual
Water Operations
Salaries $ 20,633 20,633 32,376
Administration benefits 3,487 3,487 3,477
Employee group insurance 4,261 4,261 -
Insurance - liability/workers compensation 7,661 7,661 5,622
Audit 813 13 813
Engineering services 5,000 5,000 123,475
Legal services 1,000 1,000 12,789
Plant operator fee 120,000 ' 120,000 140,559
Collector fee 1,250 1,250 -
Telephone 2,552 2,552 4,264
" Electric 37,500 37,500 102,344
Printing/binding 250 250 882
Dues and subscriptions 100 100 1,551
Equipment rental 5,000 5,000 21
Building maintenance 500 500 1,155
Equipment maintenance 500 500 7,107
System maintenance 69,000 69,000 6,306
Operational supplies 5,000 5,000 3,653
Gas and oil - - 4,170
Small tools/equipment 500 500 3,257
Postage 1,125 1,125 585
Water supplies 8,000 8,000 2,946
Maintenance supplies 2,000 2,000 693
Restoration materials 8,000 8,000 3,425
Contingencies 5,000 5,000 3,356
Miscellaneous 500 500 (31,392)
* Water meters 121,250 121,250 136,030
Data processing equipment 35,000 35,000 1,857
Total Water Operations 465,882 465,882 571,321
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Water and Sewer - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Sewer Operations

Salaries

Administration benefits
Employee group insurance

Insurance - liability/workers compensation

Audit

Engineering services
Legal services

Plant operator fee
Collector fee
Telephone

Electric _
Printing/binding

Dues and subscriptions
Equipment rental
Building maintenance
Equipment maintenance
System maintenance
Postage

Sewer supplies

Gas and oil

Small tools and equipment
Maintenance supplies
Chemicals
Contingencies
Miscellaneous

Data processing equipment

Total Sewer Operations

Budget
Original Final Actual
$ 20,633 20,633 32,458
3,487 3,487 3,477
4,261 4,261 -
7,661 7,661 5,622
813 - 813 812
25,000 25,000 27,112
1,000 1,000 9,826
120,000 120,000 140,559
1,250 1,250 -
2,504 2,504 459
37,500 37,500 21
250 250 124
100 100 195
5,000 5,000 542
500 . 500 -
5,000 5,000 1,273
70,000 70,000 43,823
1,125 1,125 628
5,000 5,000 1,734
- - 1,328
- - 1,108
5,000 5,000 126
10,000 10,000 -
5,000 5,000 -
2,000 2,000 10,884
15,000 15,000 -
348,084 282,111

348,084
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Garbage - Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2005

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Garbage operations

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending
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Budget
Original Final Actual

$ 108,330 108,330 100,197

108,110 108,110 110,181
220 220 (9,984)

8,420 102 118
8,640 322 (9,866)

16,224

' 6,358
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Garbage - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Garbage Operations
Garbage collection
Printing/binding
Recycling
Miscellaneous
Postage

Total Garbage Operations

Budget

Original Final Actual
$ 99410 99,410 109,509
500 500 124

5,000 5,000 -

2,700 2,700 ;
500 500 548
108,110 108,110 - 110,181
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Assets used in the operation of governmental funds include only the capital asset
balances related to governmental funds.






......

VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Governmental Capital Assets - By Source

April 30, 2005
GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
Land $ 50,000
Buildings and Improvements 273,441
Machinery and Equipment 570,505
Infrastructure 119,911,606
120,805,552
INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE
General Revenues 847,730
Capital Projects Funds 7,527,551
Developer Contributions 112,430,271
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Governmental Capital Assets - By Function and Activity

April 30, 2005

Machinery
Function and Buildings and and
Activity Land Improvements  Equipment Infrastructure Totals
General Government $ 50,000 263,441 75,084 - 388,525
Public Safety - 10,000 182,513 - 192,513
Public Works - - 312,908 119,911,606 120,224,514 -
- 50,000 273,441 570,505 119,911,606 120,805,552
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Changes in Governmental Capital Assets - By Function and Activity

Year Ended April 30, 2005

Balances Additions
Function and Beginning and Balances
Activity As Restated Transfers Deductions Ending
General Government $ 363,645 24,880 - 388,525
Public Safety 145,785 46,728 - 192,513
Public Works 112,700,806 7,523,708 - 120,224,514
7,595,316 - 120,805,552

113,210,236
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)






VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Governmental Expenditures by Function (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Apnil 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

See Following Page



VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Governmental Expenditures by Function (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year - 1996 | 1997 1998 1999

General Government N/A 202,313 309,226 473,730
Public Safety N/A 66,605 74,632 111,320
Public Works N/A 61,040 39,252 5 9,71 8
Parks and Recreation N/A N/A N/A N/A- |
Capital Outlay N/A 6,342 - 82,735
Debt Service N/A 68,102 79,068 41,804
Total N/A 404,402 502,178 769,307

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds.

Daté Source: Village Records
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

653,617 759,724 519,459 1,552,103 1,356,413 930,079

112,238 90,811 170,348 304,055 487,526 689,769

287,386 354,464 1,360,805 742,679 710,042 424,632

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 74,198

i 61,973 12,334,196 17,605,306 18,173,413 7,481,335
41,107 . i i | i 2,282,662

1,094,348 1,266,972 14,384,808 20,204,143 20,727,394 11,882,675
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Governmental Revenues by Source (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 1996 1997 1998 1999
Taxes N/A 228478 320,636 273,140
Licenses and Permits N/A 42,275 45,951 21 8,594
Intérgovernmental N/A - - -
Charges for Services N/A - - -
Fines and Forfeits N/A 6,997 4,114 10,271
Interest N/A 4,209 6,263 9,384
Miscellaneous N/A 154,5:85 136,475 623,172
Total N/A 436,544 513,439 1,134,561

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Sérvice and Capital Projects Funds.

Data Source: Village Records
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
288,093 309,526 589,143 1,654,037 2,109,670 3,538,069
518,516 153,807 117,037 102,777 250,798 172,993
- 27,583 1,300,612 2,665,589 2,039,146 536,664
. 110,972 22,641 38,251 63,483 2,737,438
5479 225 18,212 13,417 48,055 93,812
11,979 10,015 82,848 98,553 73,116 125,668
66,632 670,739 3,439,290 3,308,269 11,498,555 51,434
890,699 1,282,867 5,578,783 7,880,893 16,082,823 7,256,078
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Total Percent of
Tax Property Total Total
Levy Tax Tax Extension
Year Extension Collections .Collected
1995 - - 0.00%
1996 - - 0.00%
1997 i : 0.00%
1998 - - 0.00%
1999 19,574 19,574 100.00%
2000 20,563 20,563 100.00%
2001 21,580 21,580 100.00%
2002 43,024 43,024 100.00%
2003 45,112 45,131 100.04%
2004 47,332 . * *

*To be collected in fiscal year 2005-2006 in accordance with Illinois Law.

Data Source: Office of the County Clerk of Will County
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Ratio of Total
Tax Equalized Estimated Assessed Value to
Levy Assessed Actual Estimated
Year Value Value Actual Value
1995 $ 9,412,959 28,238,877 33.33
1996 12,070,714 36,212,142 33.33
1997 14,282,050 42,846,150 33.33
1998 17,507,523 52,522,569 33.33
1999 21,415,991 64,247,973 | 33.33
2000 26,810,573 80,431,719 $33.33
2001 30,653,977 91,961,931 33.33
2002 33,095,043 99,285,129 33.33
2003 37,687,459 113,062,377 33.33
2004 40,874,189 122,622,567 33.33

Data Source: Will County Tax Extension Office
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Property Tax Rates Per $100 Assessed Valuation

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Tax Levy Year 1995 1996 1997 1998
Village of Elwood 0.132 0.757 0.130 0.106
Village of Elwood Road and Bridge 0.135 0.139 0.140 0.137
Forest Preserve 0.145 0.140 - 0.135 0.129
Will County Bldg Comm 0.069 0.066 0.063 0.060
Jackson Township Town Funds 0.098 0.101 0.101 0.099
. Jackson Township Road Funds 0.170 0.174 0.175 0.170
Elwood Fire Protection District 0.368 0.402 0.415 0.439
School District 203 2.301 2.502 . 2504 2482
High School District 204 2.016 2.156 2.156 1.992
Community College District 525 0.214 0.215 0.215 0.220
Manbhattan Public Library 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Will County 0.570 0.572 0.573 0.566
Total Tax Rate Per $100 EAV 6.216 7.222 6.606 6.398
Village's Share of Total Tax Rate 2.33% 1.97% 2.08% 2.01%

Data Source: Office of the Will County Clerk
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

0.091 0.077 0.070 0.130 0.120 0.116
0.136 0.130 0.134 0.135 0.131 0.129
0.139 0.137 0.135 . 0.132 0.127 0.124
0.058 0.055 0.052 10.048 0.045 0.042
0.097 0089 0.092 0.093 0.090 0.089
0.167 0.160 0.165 0.167 0.161 0.159
0.441 0.444 0.457 0.463 0.465 0.507
2.454 2.777 2795 2.813 2707 2.699
1.950 1.920 2.031 2272 2.172 2.151
0.219 0.222 0.224 0.221 0.211 0214
0.000 0.572 0.163 0.162 0.155 0.170
0.572 0.572 0571 0.558 0.537 0.529
6.324 7.154 6.889 7.193 . 6919 6.928
2.20% 1.91% 1.96% 1.83% 1.83% 1.67%
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Schedule of Legal Debt Margin

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides that the General Assembly may limit the
amount and require referenda for approval of debt payable from ad valorem property taxes in excess of one
percent of assessed valuation. However, no such statute has been enacted as of this date. Therefore, as a home
rule municipality, the Village of Elwwod, Illinois has no debt limit.
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Ratio of General Obligation Bonded Debt to
Assessed Valuation and Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Ratio of
Outstanding
General Outstanding
Outstanding Net Obligation General
General Less General Bonded Obligation
Obligation Debt Obligation Debt to Bonded
Fiscal Assessed Bonded Service Bonded Assessed Debt
Year Population Value Debt Funds Debt Value Per Capita
1996 950 $ 9,421,369 $ - - 0.00% -
1997 950 12,080,458 475,000 475,000 3.93% 500.00
1998 950 14,313,751 460,000 460,000 3.21% 484.21
1999 950 17,536,718 445,000 445,000 2.54% 468.42
2000 1,620 21,415,991 430,000 430,000 2.01% 265.43
2001 1,620 26,810,573 410,000 410,000 1.53% 253.09
2002 1,620 30,653,977 390,000 390,000 1.27% 240.74
2003 1,620 33,095,043 - - 0.00% -
2004 1,620 37,687,459 - - 0.00% -
2005 1,620 40,874,189 - - 0.00% -

Data Sources: Census Bureau, Office of the County Clerk and Village Records
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General
Bonded Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

) Ratio of Debt
Total Service to

Total General General

Fiscal » Debt Governmental Governmental

Year ‘Principal Interest Service (1) Expenditures Expenditures -
1996 $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.00%
1997 45,000 22,273 | 67,273 404,402 16.64%
1998 - 50,000 28,475 78,475 502,178 15.63%
1999 15,000 26,495 41,495 769,307 5.39%
2000 15,000 25,798 40,798 1,094,348 3.73%
2001 20,000 24,062 44,062 1,266,972 3.48%
2002 20,000 23,037 43,037 14,384,808 0.30%
2003 - 5,757 5,757 20,204,143 0.03%
2004 - 42,250 42,250 20,7‘2’./,3 94 0.20%
2005 - 90,000 90,000 11,882,675 0.76%

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Funds.

Data Source: Village Records
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Net
Revenue

* ** Available
Fiscal = Gross Operating for Debt
Year Revenue Expenses Service Principal Interest Total - Coverage
1996 §$ - - - - - - -
1997 436,545 404,402 32,143 45,000 22,273 67,273 0.48
1998 513,440 502,178 11,262 50,000 28,475 78,475 0.14
1999 1,134,561 769,308 365,253 15,000 26,495 41,495 8.80
2000 890,700 1,094,348 (203,648) 15,000 25,798 40,798 (4.99)
2001 1,282,867 1,266,972 15,895 20,000 24,062 44,062 0.36
2002 5,578,783 14,384,808 (8,806,025) 20,000 23,037 43,037 (204.62)
2003 7,880,893 20,204,143 (12,323,250) - 5,757 5,757 (2,140.57)
2004 16,082,823 20,727,394 (4,644,571) - 42,250 42,250 (109.93)
2005 7,256,078 11,882,675 (4,626,597) - 90,000 90,000 (51.41)

*Represents gross operating revenues including interest exclusive of connection fees.
**Excludes depreciation. ’

Data Source: Village Records
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Percentage
of
Debt Village's
Applicable Share of
Governmental Unit Gross Debt to Village Debt
Village of Elwood $ - 100.00 % -
Forest Preserve 110,810,214 85.88 95,161,475
Community College District 525 18,222,081 14.12 2,573,342
Subtotal 129,032,295 97,734,817
Totals 129,032,295 97,734,-817

* Determined by the ratio of assessed value of property in the Village of Elwood subject to taxation

by the Governmental Unit to the total assessed value of property of the Governmental Unit.

Data Source: Will County Clerk's Office
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2004 (Unaudited)

2)
Per ) 3) (4)
Fiscal 1) Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population Income Age Enrollment Percentage
1996 950 $ - 35 293 0.00%
1997 950 - 35 299 -
1998 950 - 35. . 303 -
1999 950 - 35 308 1.8
2000 1,620 22,442 35 322 1.8
2001 1,620 22,442 35 347 1.8
2002 1,620 22,442 35 362 1.8
2003 1,620 22,442 35 396 1.8
2004 1,620 22,442 35 421 1.8
2005 1,620 22,442 35 426 -

Data Sources:

(1) U.S. Census Bureau

(2) U.S. Census Bureau

(3) Annual School Census

(4) Illinois Department of Employment Security
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VILLAGE OF ELWOOD, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Ten Largest Real Estate Taxpayers

April 30, 2005 (Unaudited)

Percentage
of Village's
Total 2004
Taxable Assessed

Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Valuation Valuation
CenterPoint Intermodal LLC Real Estate Development $ 5,928,273 14.50%
CenterPoint Intermodal LLC Real Estate Development 5,847,722 14.31%
CenterPoint Intermodal LLC Real Estate Development 4,044,213 9.89%
Elwood Energy Energy Production 3,903,686 9.55%
Manbhattan Project Elwood Project Box Car Repairs 2,816,231 6.89%
CenterPoint Intermodal LLC Real Estate Development 2,601,984 6.37%
Elwood Energy Energy Production 2,177,015 5.33%
CenterPoint Intermodal LLC Real Estate Development 562,302 1.38%
Perc Holdings Energy Production 525,313 1.29%
Perc Holdings Energy Production 407,386 1.00%
Total 28,814,125 70.49%

Data Source: Will County Clerk Tax Extension Office
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